
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 18 July 2022 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Minutes of meetings held on 21st March and 20th June 2022 and 
matters arising  

 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

4   SCL (Salford Community Leisure) Overview and Impact  

 
(Pages 7 - 20) 

5   Citywide: Catering and Cleaning Services - Overview  

 
(Pages 21 - 34) 

6   Salford City Council Vehicle Fleet Management - Clean Air 
Regulations and Compliance  

 

(Pages 35 - 42) 

7   Work Programme 2022/23  

 
(Pages 43 - 46) 

8   Any other business  

 

 

9   Next Meeting - 2.00 pm on Monday 19 September 2022  

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

 21 March 2022 
 

 Meeting commenced: 2.00 p.m. 
 “                  ended: 3:30 p.m. 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Dickman - in the Chair 

 
Councillors Barnes, Brabiner, Fletcher, Humphreys, Nkurunziza, Sharpe 
and Tresadern.  

 
Councillor Sharmina August* - Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, 

Anti-Poverty and Equalities 
Councillor David Lancaster* - Lead Member for Environment,  
                                               Neighbourhoods and Community Safety 

Councillor Jack Youd* - Exec Support for Procurement and Social Value 
 

OFFICERS:  Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Adviser 
Jacquie Russell* - Assistant Director, Strategy and Change 

                      Jon Stancombe* - Manager, Policy and Partnerships 

                      Jessica Pathak* - Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Lead 
                      Shari Bowes* -  Principal Policy Officer 

                      *Attended via Teams  
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Karen Garrido, Turner 

and Warner. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS  

 

The minutes of the meetings of the Panel held on 17th January 2022, were approved 
as a correct record. 

 
4. IMPACT OF THE TACKLING POVERTY STRATEGY; INCLUSIVE AND GREEN 

ECONOMY STRATEGY; AND SALFORD EQUALITY AND INCLUSION STRATEGY 

 
The Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities submitted a 

report and associated action plans, which provided an update on progress being made 
in delivering three of the City’s key strategies, as part of The Salford Way approach to 
tackling inequalities, namely: 

 

 Tackling Poverty Strategy  

 Inclusive and Green and Economy Strategy  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 Equality and Inclusion Strategy 
 

All three strategies had been launched in 2021, following extensive engagement with 
partners in the public, private and voluntary, community and social enterprise sectors, 

and each of the associated action plans had been developed to support 
implementation.  
 

An overview of each strategy was provided to elaborate on their contents and highlight 
the key issues within them and the covering report. 

 
Members raised issues, commented on, and noted them, as follows: 
 

(a) Public transport was central to supporting a vibrant local economy, what work was 
being done to develop such transport services? This was an objective at a Greater 

Manchester level and through TfGM work was ongoing to develop the Bee Network 
an integrated public transport system joining together buses, trams, rail services, as 
well as cycling and walking. The current plans for the introduction of a franchising 

system for buses in the region was also a key element of this.  
 

(b) Thanks were extended for the support which was provided to the local community 
by Salford Assist.  
 

(c) What had been the impact, particularly arising from the Covid-19 pandemic, in 
terms of progress to achieving community wealth building objectives? The biggest 

challenge was one of capacity. The necessary expertise often already existed within 
local voluntary groups and the focus was both to identify such resources/skills and tap 
into them. There was also a commitment by Salford City Council wherever possible to 

procure services from local suppliers. A growing problem was the long term financial 
viability of local voluntary groups, something which had been compounded  by both 

the pandemic and the rise in the cost of living. It was also envisaged, because of the 
current economic situation, there would be an increased demand upon debt advice 
services.      

 
(d) The breadth of the remit of the three respective strategies was wide and while the 

value of their objectives was both fully recognised and supported, setting targets and 
quantifying and measuring their impact was less easy. This was acknowledged, as 
was the need for monitoring and devising effective evaluation methods for the 

strategies. In terms of socio-economic and equality impacts, it was intended tom 
undertake a service by service analysis.   

 
(e) Increasing local community involvement/participation, as a way of strengthening 
and stimulating economic and social growth was seen as a key activity, and 

suggestions as to how this could be achieved were welcomed. Local focus groups on 
issues/proposals, possibly with “incentives” (e.g. buffets) to encourage attendance, 

was proposed as a possible option. It was suggested local communities would 
welcome and be more receptive to an approach where they were routinely consulted 
on proposals at an early stage, rather than them effectively being presented to them 

as a fait accompli on which they had no real influence. When consulting with local 
communities, there was need to provide feedback and “complete the loop”, confirming 

either their views had been taken into account and would be acted upon, or if this was 

Page 2



not possible, the reasons for this. Effective consultation with local communities was a 
valuable tool and one where best practice had been developed through forums such 

the Poverty Truth Commission and the Salford Women and Girls Commission. The 
consultative arrangements practised there would be built upon with the long term aim 

for them to be used routinely and extensively, creating an environment where those 
impacted had a feeling they had “ownership”. 
 

(f) Thanks were expressed for work which had already been undertaken by Salford 
City Council had undertaken in terms of tackling poverty generally and specifically fuel 

poverty, however as the UK’s cost of living crisis deepened these were both problems 
which would only grow, in which case what further tangible actions would be taken to 
mitigate their impact? Local authorities would have responsibility for administering the 

£150 rebate on Bands A to D Council Tax bills and towards domestic fuel bill costs, 
which had been announced by H.M. Government, with a further 28 million households 

in Britain eligible for a £200 repayable grant on their energy bills later in 2022. 
However, realistically for most people the combined effect of this financial relief would 
only provide some mitigation for the impact of rising domestic energy bills.    

 
(g) Further information was requested on the remit, composition and activities of the 

Salford Women and Girls Commission, all of which was duly provided. 
https://www.partnersinsalford.org/salford-women-and-girls-commission/  
 

Was there any male representation on the Salford Women and Girls Commission? 
Currently there was not, but this was a long term aim and essential in any drive towards 

changing negative entrenched attitudes to woman which significant numbers of men 
held.  
 

(h) Reference was made to WASPI (Women Against State Pension Equality) and the 
specific financial hardship issues which impacted them. This was recognised as a 

group who needed to be engaged with. 
 
(i) The work already undertaken to engage with those members of the community 

whose first language was not English was welcomed, but much remained to be done. 
Particular reference was made to (i) the many African languages which were not 

catered for and (ii) the lack of interpreter services available at Citizen Advice Bureaus 
(CABs) which was a national issue, not just in Salford. Councillor Sharmina August, 
Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities said she would 

investigate both matters and concluded by commenting, accessibility was not solely 
an issue of language. 

 
RESOLVED:  (1) THAT the report the actions and progress to deliver Salford’s 
Tackling Poverty Strategy, Inclusive and Green Economy Strategy and Equalities and 

Inclusion Strategy be noted and the impact of the overall programme of work in 
achieving its strategic aims be welcomed and thanks extended to all those involved.   

 
     (2) THAT the Panel  revisit the Tackling Poverty, Inclusive and Green 
Economy and Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategies in 12 months’ time to review 

their continuing implementation and the progress made in achieving their agreed 
objectives.            

 

Page 3

https://www.partnersinsalford.org/salford-women-and-girls-commission/


 
 

5. WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 
 

Members considered the Panel’s Work Programme for 2021/22.  
 
The Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities said a number 

of task and finish exercises were planned to evaluate a number of services, their 
accessibility to Salford residents and if necessary, identify and propose improvements, 

for which the Panel’s input would be welcomed. 
 
RESOLVED: (1) THAT the Panel’s Work Programme for 2021/22, be noted. 

 
                     (2) THAT the operation and impact of Salford City Council’s Street 

Champions scheme be considered as a potential item for consideration at a future 
meeting of the Panel. 
 

6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the next scheduled meeting of the Panel be postponed pending 
the outcome of any changes to membership as reported to the annual meeting of 
Council on 18th  May 2022. 

Page 4



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL 
WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 - DEVELOPMENT SESSION 

 
 20 June 2022 

 
 Meeting commenced: 2.00 p.m. 
 “                  ended: 3.40 p.m. 

 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Dickman - in the Chair 
 

Councillors Boshell, Brabiner, Fletcher, Gina Reynolds, Mullen, Walters 

and Ward. 
 

Councillor Barbara Bentham - Lead Member, Environment, 
                                                Neighbourhoods and Community Safety  
Councillor Lancaster - Exec Support, Environment, Neighbourhoods 

                                     and Community Safety  
 

OFFICERS:  David Seager - Assistant Director, Operational and Commercial  
      Services 
                      Dominic Clarke - Head of Citywide and Community Services 

                      David Robinson - Head of Service (Streetscene and Parks) 
                      Jeanette Staley - Head of Community Safety 

                      John Wooderson - Head of Urban Renewal and Regulatory Services 
  Mike Relph - Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillors Michelle Barnes, 
Karen Garrido, Roseanna Wain and Barry Warner. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. PLACE DIRECTORATE - SERVICE OVERVIEW 

 
The Strategic Director for Place gave a presentation which provided an overview of 

the services and activities of the various teams within the Place Directorate as 
focused around the following key themes: 
 

 Community Safety  

 Parks and Streetscene 

 Citywide and Community Services 

 Vehicle Maintenance and Management Services 

 Salford Community Leisure 

 Regulatory Services 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the presentation be noted  

Page 5



                     
4. WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 
Consideration was given to the Panel’s Work Programme for 2022/23  

 
RESOLVED: THAT, the Work Programme for 2022/23 (attached at Item 7 to the 
agenda for the meeting of 18 July 2022) be endorsed and subject to periodic review, 

form the basis of the Board’s activity for the forthcoming twelve months. 
 

5. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 18 July 

2022, commencing at 2.00 pm.  
 

 

Page 6



P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 8



P
age 9



P
age 10



P
age 11



P
age 12



P
age 13



P
age 14



P
age 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



P
age 18



P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Citywide Services –

School Meals & Cleaning 

Services Update 

Communities and 

Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 

Panel 

18th July 2022

Lucy Clarke– Service Manager,

Citywide Services

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 5



Background – Citywide Services

• Offering school catering and building cleaning 

services to internal and external customers across 

Salford.

• Combined turnover of approximately £9 million per 

annum (£6 million school catering, £3 million 

cleaning).

• 735 members of staff across the service – 95%

female workforce.

• Providing cleaning services at approximately 145 

buildings across Salford.

• School Catering provided to 57 Schools, 5 Nurseries 

& 3 Pupil Referral Units.

P
age 22



Strategic purpose

"To create the best possible quality of life for the people of Salford"

• By ensuring Salford children and young people have access to healthy, balanced and value

for money school meals, thereby helping to reduce childhood obesity and promote

healthier lifestyles from an early age.

• By creating much needed permanent and casual employment opportunities for local

Salford people. Both Schools Catering and Building Cleaning Services play a very valuable

role in creating entry level career opportunities for local people. The training and

development opportunities, along with other benefits, such as the living wage, help people

to access, and advance in, the labour market.

• Delivering a healthy and nutritious school meal service which makes a significant

contribution to Salford’s anti poverty strategy.

P
age 23



Recent Achievements

• All Citywide catering and cleaning services

continued to be delivered throughout Covid by our

dedicated teams. Included providing hot school

meals to key worker / vulnerable children and

providing vital cleaning at the Covid testing sites

across Salford.

• Citywide proud to pay its employees the living wage.

• 12 current apprentices in catering with a further 2

planned to start in September 2022.

• Over 2,800 hours of online MyLearning training and

over 1,400 hours of in person training delivered to

catering and cleaning staff in 2021 / 2022 in

subjects including safeguarding, allergen training,

health and safety, food safety and equality and

diversity.

P
age 24



Recent Achievements

• New school meal contract at St Wilfrid's, Hulme and a

new transported meal service to Oakwood Academy,

Irlam.

• Natasha’s Law compliance introduced across all

schools

• 36 schools now have a menu selector system

installed with a further 5 planned during first term of

22/23.

• Two new seasonal menus a year for all schools and

nine theme lunch menus

• Recognised as the 5th UK Greenest School Menu in

the School Menu League – highest placed of any

North West provider.

• North West 2021 / 2022 LACA School Chef of the

Year.

P
age 25



Recent Achievements   

• Equipment audit completed and new cleaning 

equipment invested in.

• Additional cleaning hours secured for existing 

contracts

• Delivery of orders direct from supplier to the 

site, reducing carbon footprint and providing 

efficiencies. 

• Green mark accredited cleaning products 

introduced across the business. 

• Healthy Holidays Scheme food and cleaning 

services provided at Easter and Summer 

holidays. 

P
age 26



Recent Achievements

In order to try and counter the aggressive competition

from the private sector Citywide have developed;

• Professional brochures which are to initially market

our services to potential clients.

• www.citywideservices.co.uk our purpose designed

website to communicate with schools, businesses

and parents.

• Management team attended Salford Headteachers

Conference in March 2022.

• Proactive marketing of services to Headteachers

and Business Managers with individual meetings

undertaken to discuss the service.

P
age 27

http://www.citywideservices.co.uk/


Average Meal Numbers 21 / 22

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22

Free Pupils Paid Pupils Total Meals

P
age 28



Service Challenges Moving Forward

• Increasing Costs 

• Recovering meal numbers from Covid this 

will be particularly difficult with the impact of 

cost of living affecting families at present.

• AGMA Food Procurement Negotiations

• Retention of existing contracts and expansion 

of business moving forward. 

• Competition from private market is strong in 

Salford across both services.

P
age 29



Service Challenges Moving Forward

• Infrastructure of the kitchens and kitchen 

equipment in schools needs continuous  

investment especially at a time of significant 

financial challenges.

• Some of the current kitchens are in desperate 

need of modernising in order to meet 

Environmental Health and Food Standards 

Requirements. 

• Food Safety Legislation changes – especially 

on allergens and ‘may contain’ requires 

investment in equipment and training of staff.

• Recruitment and retention of staff especially on 

lower hour contracts. 

• Aging workforce, especially supervisor level and 

above – loss of experience and knowledge of 

the service.

P
age 30



Thank you – any questions

P
age 31



Appendix – Citywide Example Primary Menu Summer

P
age 32



Appendix – Citywide Example Primary Menu Winter

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Salford City Council’s Fleet 

Management -Clean Air Regulations & 

Compliance

David Robinson

Head of Service – Parks, Streetscene & Transport

Alan Fitzsimons

Transport Manager

Presentation to :-

Community & Neighbourhood Scrutiny 

Panel 

18th July 2022

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 6



Clean Air Regulations        

➢ What are they ? The Regulations were introduced in order to control illegal levels of Air 

Pollution on local roads as a result of high level vehicle emissions of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)

➢ Why do we have to address them ? Poor air quality affects everyone's health, especially the 

most vulnerable in our community. 

➢ Who do they affect ?The GM Clean Air Plan, introduced a Clean Air Zone(CAZ), and vehicles 

that don’t meet emission standards will be charged if you drive into a predetermined Zone

➢ When will it be introduced? GM has to reach its “direction for compliance, in the shortest 

possible time…but No later than 2026.”

A new clean air plan for Greater Manchester is expected by July 2022

P
age 36



SCC Responsibilities

➢ In preparation for new regulations SCC has already preparing its own 

fleet, to ensure that its meet the emission requirements. 

➢ It is the Transport division within the Place Directorate, responsibility to 

ensure that all user departments are aware of the legislation and their 

responsibilities in operating a fleet that meets the requirements set by 

Government & GMCA

➢ By September 2022 ,all our Salford City Council vehicles will meet the 

current standards.

P
age 37



➢ We are also moving towards a more environmentally “friendly” fleet, with 

the introduction of:-

➢ Electric vehicles  :-

12 x Car derived vans 

3 x Short wheel based vans

➢ Euro 6 Compliant – Diesel Engines:-

2 x Small Cars                                       

47 x General Tipper Vehicles

34 x Refuse Collection Vehicles                     

20 x Car Derived Vans                                      

11 x Large  & Small Road Sweepers

Salford City Council – current fleet

P
age 38



Market Developments

➢ Electric Vehicles:-

Pro’s – less emissions, Noise levels reduced considerably

Con’s – Initial costs, infrastructure for charging not available in the depot 

➢ Hydrogen Fuelled Vehicles:-

Pro’s  - less emissions, Noise level reduced considerably

Con’s – Initial costs , technology still in its infancy

➢ Dual Fuel Vehicles:-

Pro’s  - less emissions, Noise level reduced considerably

Con’s – Initial costs, technology still in its infancy

P
age 39



Future Investment Requirements 

➢ Depot Improvement’s – Infrastructure issues – Capacity, Logistics etc...

➢ Fleet – Further Capital Investment is required i.e. “Invest to Save”

➢ Staff – Upskilling of our current and future workforce is essential that we are prepared for future

fleet changes

P
age 40



➢ There are still many unknowns with regards to development, timescales and costs

➢ What we do know is that Environmentally, Economically and Legally our current fleet is and will 

change in future years

➢ As a Local Authority we are seen as a “Beacon” for the Private Sector

➢ Therefore, we need to be at the forefront of any developments, and lead the way for our Public and 

Businesses; not only within Salford and Greater Manchester but across the UK and the Rest of the 

World.

➢ Officers will work closely with our other Directorate colleagues, along with partners in the public 

and private sector, to ensure that Salford is fully prepared for these impending changes to our/their 

vehicles.

SUMMARY :-

P
age 41



Questions?

P
age 42



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 
SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 

Date 
 

Topic/Action Responsible officer(s) 

18 July 2022 

 

 SCL Overview and Impact  

 Citywide - Catering and Cleaning Overview  

 Fleet Management - Clean Air Regulations Compliance 

 

 

August  
 

No meeting - recess  

19 September 2022 

 
 Waste contract performance and future recycling strategies  

17 October 2022 
 

 Pesticides Usage  

 Allotments  

 Pest Control  

 

 

21 November 2022 
 

 NRFs and Neighbourhood Management Update  

 Police overview in Salford 

 ID requirements for voting at UK elections  
 

 

December 2022 No meeting - Christmas 

 

 

16 January 2023 
 

 Bereavement Services  

 Food Safety  

 

 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 

20 February 2023 
 

 Salford Way and cost of living crisis including: 
o 12 month review of Tackling Poverty, Inclusive and Green 

Economy and Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategies 
(originally considered by Panel on 21/3/22) 

 

 

20 March 2023   

April No meeting - run up to local election  

15 May 2022 TBC 
 

TBC  P
age 44



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 

 
 

ABEYANCE LIST 

 

Landlord and Business Licensing - Overview and Effectiveness (in the interim Panel asked to identify 
specific themes and issues they wish to be briefed on and consider)  
 

 

Operation and impact of Salford City Council’s Street Champions scheme 
 

 

Protocol for Managing Unauthorised Encampments - current legislation and requirements of local 
authorities (information provided further consideration by Panel required to be confirmed) 
 

 

The following items are potential ones identified following a recent meeting with the Lead Member for Anti-Poverty, 
Neighbourhoods, Financial Inclusion and Equalities: 
 

Covid-19 Pandemic  

 “social” impact on older generation, isolation and access to services (particularly online ones)  

 Social inequalities identified  
 

 

Social inclusion   

 impact of Covid-19 particularly on the elderly and their access to online services 
 

 

Crime/Community Safety - activity by extremist political groups  

P
age 45



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2022/23  
 

 

 

  

Portfolio of the Board 
 

Membership  

1. Community Safety  

2. Communities and Neighbourhoods  
3. Regulatory Services (including Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing)  

4. Operational Services (including Citywide, bereavement, 
operational transport, refuse and street cleansing, parks 

management, grounds maintenance)  
5. Salford Community Leisure Client  
6. Cultural strategy  

7. to be the designated Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee  
8. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 

functional area. 

Councillor Dickman (Chair) 

Councillor Karen Garrido (Deputy Chair) 
Councillor Barnes 
Councillor Boshell 

Councillor Brabiner 
Councillor Fletcher 

Councillor Mullen 
Councillor Gina Reynolds 
Councillor Wain 

Councillor Walters 
Councillor Ward 

Councillor Warner 
 

P
age 46


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meetings held on 21st March and 20th June 2022 and matters arising
	03ii Minutes 20 June 2022

	4 SCL (Salford Community Leisure) Overview and Impact
	5 Citywide: Catering and Cleaning Services - Overview
	6 Salford City Council Vehicle Fleet Management - Clean Air Regulations and Compliance
	7 Work Programme 2022/23

